MINUTES OF THE
TUPELO PLANNING COMMITTEE
August 3, 2009

There was a regular meeting of the Tupelo Plan@ogmmittee held Monday, August 3,
2009 at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers on tlherse floor of City Hall. Planning

Committee members present were: Chairman Micha&tizGJr., Mr. Russ Wilson, Mrs.
Judy Brown, Mr. Rud Robison, Mr. Bill Smith, Jr.nca Mrs. Mabel Murphree.

Department of Development Services staff preserst wer. Pat Falkner, Ms. Marilyn

Vail, Ms. Sherrie Cochran, and Mrs. Nikki BurtoMr. Brannon Kahlstorf was present
as legal counsel from Mitchell, McNutt, & Sams oahhblf of the City of Tupelo.

Committee members Mr. Dick Johnson and Mr. MitchetElwere absent from the
meeting, as was Director of Development Services. 8rJ. Teal.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Gratz called the meeting to order. Mrit®ied the invocation and Mr. Gratz
led the Pledge of Allegiance. Mr. Gratz explaingeg meeting’'s procedures and
confirmed the agenda. Ms. Brown made a motioretnove Item number 5, an appeal
from Mr. Bob Starnes, developer of the Pines anBaiCrossing, LLC, from the agenda.
Mr. Smith seconded the motion, which passed unamsiyo

REVIEW/APPROVE PREVIOUS MINUTES

Mrs. Murphree made a motion to approve the mintrtes the June 2009 meeting. Mr.
Smith seconded the motion, which passed unanimously

REPORT ON COUNCIL ACTIONS

Mr. Falkner stated that there were not any couactions for the previous month since
the Planning Committee did not hold a July 2009tinge

NEW BUSINESS

1. MJ09-04: Jerry Enis requests a _major _conditional us to allow a
manufactured storage building to be used as a suppkenter for the
existing used car business located at 1743 North &n Street in a C-2,
General Commercial Zoning District.

Mr. Falkner stated that Mr. Enis has owned a usedat on North Green Street since
2006. He stated that Mr. Enis plans to use thpgsed manufactured storage building to
house full-time employees, thus the need for a tiomél use. He stated that Mr. Enis
has also purchased adjacent properties on NortlenG&ireet and has used those
properties to further develop his business. Heedtahat Mr. Enis has full-time
mechanics on staff to work on the cars and woldgl o be able to sell auto parts as well.
Mr. Falkner explained that the existing manufaawstrage building is currently located



on another property, but Mr. Enis would like to reoiv to the used car lot on North
Green Street. He stated that a building inspeasgrihspected the building and it meets
the current building code. Mr. Falkner stated tat Enis has submitted a site plan, but
it needs some clarification. Mr. Falkner statedttthe Department of Development
Services has allowed Mr. Enis to have a manufadtweilding through a minor
conditional use in 2008, but not one that wouldoleupied by personnel, and would
only be used for storage and was not visible froengtreet. Mr. Falkner stated that it is
his understanding that the proposed storage bgilditl be visible from the street and
the city now has newly adopted design standards thi¢ intent of upgrading quality
commercial development. He stated that the depanttiis trying to eliminate the metal
buildings from the commercial areas where possbl#to limit the proliferation of them
where applicable, which is why this type of builglinow requires a new level of design
review and scrutiny.

Mr. Jerry Enis, stated that he is the owner ofyJBmis Used Motors. He stated that he
currently employs a technician who keeps customeass running. He stated that his
customers are on limited budgets and he is tryingatve them all the money he can. He
stated that his bookkeeper’s current office is cestdn oil and supplies. He stated that
he plans to move the manufactured storage builtirthe site on North Green Street to
enable his bookkeeper to more efficiently take adrine business inventory. He stated
that the proposed building was his personal offate his business in Aberdeen,
Mississippi. He stated that he spent a considerabhount of money to make the
building as insulated as possible, added carpetirdedor lighting. He stated that it is
fully operational and is a nice building. Mr. Esiated that the existing building on the
property has masonry on a portion of it and he dald the same to the proposed
building if necessary in order to make it preselatab

Mr. Gratz asked if there was anyone present tokspégher on behalf of or against the
application. No one was present and Mr. Gratzedothe public input portion of the
meeting and opened the floor to committee discassiirs. Brown asked Mr. Gratz if
the committee could ask Mr. Enis a few questiortsn Gratz stated yes.

Mrs. Brown addressed Mr. Enis by stating that higten statement of what the building
will be used for and what the staff has statedubses will be and what Mr. Enis has
stated during the meeting are all three differdtis. Brown stated that she would like to
clarify so that the committee and staff both untserd what the use of the building will
be. Mrs. Brown stated that Mr. Enis had statetl legplans to put his bookkeeper in the
storage building and then asked Mr. Enis if thaswarrect. Mr. Enis stated that
currently his bookkeeper is working with lots of{sasupplies surrounding her and needs
some relief, so he plans to move the supplies 6ulteo existing office. Mrs. Brown
asked if Mr. Enis would be leaving the bookkeepeffge in its present location and Mr.
Enis stated that his bookkeeper does two or thifereht jobs, one of which is to
prepare the repair orders, which is a part of vitegplans to do with the storage building,
which is storing supplies and as a customer neexk done on their vehicle, parts will
be issued from the area to the technician. Mrs Etated that the bookkeeper may do
that job, or he or the technician may do it. MBsown asked if the building would be



used for employees to walk in and out of to getgpar would someone be stationed in
the building sitting at a desk for a number of loMr. Enis stated probably both.

Mrs. Murphree asked the present location of the@sed building. Mr. Enis stated that
the building currently sits on property on Northo&kr Street adjacent to the Dollar
General store in the Barnes Crossing area. MiknEalstated that the building is
currently located outside the city limits. Mrs. pree asked if the building is currently
being used and Mr. Enis stated no.

Mr. Wilson asked if the building had been usedhatald car lot that was located in the
Barnes Crossing area and Mr. Enis stated no. Ms &ated that he had used it on his
car lot in Aberdeen, Mississippi and simply beeorigg it at its present location until he

had a use for it.

Mr. Wilson asked Mr. Enis how he planned to situsie proposed building on the lot.
Mr. Enis stated that the proposed building woulddmated on the rear east side of the
existing building on the car lot. Mr. Wilson askktl. Enis if he planned to attach the
proposed building to the existing building and ®nis stated no. Mr. Wilson asked Mr.
Enis if people would be going from the existinglBung to the proposed building. Mr.
Enis stated that there are entry doors within claeximity of both buildings and that
people will be going in to get their parts. Mr. ¥éh asked if there would be a sidewalk
or anything between the two buildings. Mr. Eniatstl that the surrounding area is
concrete, so no sidewalk is necessary.

Mr. Robison stated that he was trying to understahdre the building will be situated

on the property. He stated that it is his undeditay that the proposed building will be

located on the east side of the existing buildind B about 25 feet long going from west
to east. Mr. Robison asked if the proposed builduogld be in physical contact with the

existing building on the property or if there would a gap between the two. Mr. Enis
stated that he planned to leave a little gap betviee two buildings. Mr. Robison asked
if the gap would be a foot or no more than ten.felelr. Enis stated that the proposed
building would have to be bolted down and there liche as little space as needed
between the two buildings. Mr. Robison asked € giroposed building would be as
close to the existing building as possible and BAris stated yes.

Mrs. Brown stated that the committee has a pictbat Mr. Enis drew and it looks as
though the proposed building will be attached t® éiisting building. Mr. Enis stated
that it would not be attached. Mrs. Brown asked Emis to show her on the site plan
where the door is on the existing building and ehire door will be on the proposed
building. She then asked Mr. Enis if he planseave a little bit of space between the
two buildings and Mr. Enis stated yes. Mr. Enstatl that he did not know how the
proposed building could be attached to the exidbimitding.

Mrs. Muprhree asked Mr. Falkner if there is some&ghin the current code regarding the
number of temporary structures allowed on a commakelot. Mr. Falkner stated no.
Mrs. Murphree stated there is a code for residentia



Mr. Robison stated that if the building were todieced in the position Mr. Enis alluded
to, and is facing North Green Street so the doamisitble from the street, then the roof
slopes to the east and to the west and if the gexpbuilding is within close proximity of
the existing building, it looks like water will dranext to the wall of the existing
building. Mr. Enis stated that he thought the ramiuld slant north to south. Mr. Enis
stated that the proposed building would be plaeechough to the rear of the property
so as not to block the door of the existing buigdin

Mrs. Murphree asked if the door of the proposedding is located on the 40-foot side of
the building. Mr. Enis stated yes. Mrs. Murphiesked if the 12-foot side had any
windows or doors. Mr. Enis stated no. Mrs. Mugghstated that according to Mr. Enis’
site plan, the 12-foot side is oriented to the téxgsbuilding, so Mr. Robison has brought
up a good point that the water is going to runadfthe building and into the small gap
between buildings. Mr. Enis stated that there wdd some water there, but it’'s not a
big deal because the existing building is alreagyigped to handle the water. Mrs.
Murphree stated that it could cause an issue wadbhguitoes. Mr. Enis stated that there
is good drainage on the property. Mr. Enis stabedl all the water will be handled.

Mr. Gratz asked the committee had any additionaktjans for Mr. Enis. Mr. Robison
stated that he had another question about the water

Mr. Robison asked if the water from the existinglding is being handled with gutters
and downspouts. Mr. Enis stated yes.

Mr. Gratz asked if there were any further questiansl the opened the meeting to
committee discussion. Mr. Gratz asked the commiftéhey had any questions for Mr.
Falkner.

Mr. Robison asked Mr. Falkner if he could give tmmmittee any insight as to how the
project relates to the Comprehensive Plan. Mrkreal stated that one of the areas that
the staff had already started moving in the dicecof the Comprehensive Plan lies out
for commercial development was the implementatiérhigher design standards for
building and commercial areas, particularly on tiegor thoroughfares and the gateway
areas of the city.

Mrs. Muprhree stated that although Mr. Enis’ prapés not a gateway into the city, it is

a gateway into two public schools located on Ndstieen Street. She then asked Mr.
Falkner if he considered the use of the proposealdibg an appropriate structure for a
very heavily traveled street and into a major nkearhood and into two major school

areas. Mr. Falkner stated no.

Mr. Wilson asked Mr. Falkner if vehicles have todeertain distance off the street. Mr.
Falkner stated that they have to be off the puiaiet of way. Mr. Falkner stated that the
city monitors car dealerships on that point.



Mrs. Brown asked Mr. Falkner if metal buildingsdikhe proposed building have been
allowed in places similar to Mr. Enis’ in the pgstar or two. Mr. Falkner stated no. He
stated that going back further, when manufactureittlings were allowed by minor
conditional use, they have been allowed, but siheestandards have changed in the past
few years, approval has not been granted for thgse buildings. Mrs. Brown asked if
there have been any requests to have metal stbralgéengs in the past two years. Mr.
Falkner stated yes, one on West Main Street thas denied and another in a
neighborhood that the committee denied, but thg Cduncil overrode the committee’s
decision and approved it.

Mrs. Murphree stated that she thought the commitiad denied a metal building on
South Gloster for Mr. Sheffield.

Mr. Gratz asked Mr. Falkner to speak to the vigipibf the proposed building from the
street. Mr. Falkner stated that the proposed Imgldvould be somewhat setback behind
the existing building but would still be visibleofin the street.

Mr. Gratz asked Mr. Falkner if installing masonny the proposed building was part of
the original application. Mr. Falkner stated thmaasonry had not been previously
discussed and stated that he was not sure masonig be added to the proposed
building successfully. He stated that at one tithe,design standards only required 50%
masonry, but now that the standards require 100%onmg, he did not know how it
could work on a metal building.

Mrs. Murphree stated that there are two signs &xtan the existing building and asked
Mr. Falkner if two signs are allowed on one buifglin Mr. Falkner stated that the
ordinance allows for a certain square footage gri sire and does not prohibit two signs
on a building. He stated that the square footdg&goage on the building is based on the
length of the wall and Mr. Enis’ sighage seemsdarbcompliance.

Mr. Gratz asked if there was any further discussidtiter being none, he asked if the
committee had a motion.

Mrs. Murphree made a motion to deny the applicasient is not in alignment with the

Comprehensive Plan and the design standards thatitthis trying to achieve and also
based on the fact that similar applications havenh#enied in the past few years. Mrs.
Brown seconded the motion, which passed unanimously

Mr. Enis asked that the committee talk to Developinteervices staff because he had
talked with Ms. Vail about the application and Isp@nt a lot of time on the project. He
suggested the committee have the staff warn ciizen to waste their time on projects
like his.

Mr. Gratz informed Mr. Enis of his right to appé¢iladé committee’s decision.



2. MJ09-03: NMMC Child Care Center requests a Major Gonditional
Use to allow the placement of a modular building tdbe used as a
speech and physical therapy clinic at 4524 Eason Blevard in an M-
1, Medical Zoning District.

Mrs. Murphree stated that she would not be votingle application because she is a
member of the NMMC Board.

Mr. Falkner stated that the application submittgd\IMMC appears to be similar to Mr.
Enis’ application because it is a manufactured tygodlding, but there is a major
distinction in the code, a provision in Chapterthdt allows the use of these buildings
under special circumstances for medical and eduwaltifacilities, thus creating a
different category for the application. Mr. Falkrstated that the proposed building has
actually been in use on the campus of the NMMC Wadselospital and is currently in
place and visible at that location. Mr. Falkneatet that NMMC wants to re-locate the
building to another area in the general locationomer to give the hospital some
flexibility while they are in the process of chandr. Falkner stated that the availability
of the building will allow NMMC to continue activés while they make a transition in
permanent buildings.

Mr. Bruce Ridgeway, NMMC, stated that the modulaiiding is only a temporary relief
for a service the hospital provides. Mr. Ridgevesgted that the Child Care Center is
available only to children of NMMC employees andreutly enrolls approximately 300
children. Mr. Ridgeway stated that of the 300 digh, at any given time, 15 to 18
children can be actively receiving some form of#py, whether is be speech therapy or
occupational therapy, or any other type of theraple stated that currently parents pick
their children up from the Child Care Center, takem to the necessary rehab facility,
then returning the children to the Child Care Centkle stated that over the past few
years, NMMC had decided to experiment a little iyt assigning physical therapists,
speech therapists and occupational therapistset@htid Care Center and they actually
operate a small clinic there for the children. Ridgeway stated that it is a lot easier for
the therapists to walk down the hall, observe thtan a playing mode and gain some
insight on what issues the child has at that paintl then take the child into the therapy
room and proceed with whatever is necessary. NigdRvay stated it is much more
convenient for the parents and is the result ofpheents asking NMMC if they had a
solution. Mr. Ridgeway stated that there are autyehree modular buildings located on
the campus. He stated that two have been leaskdilitbe removed within the next two
months. He stated that the building that they vigsinelocate is about 400 square feet,
and is a typical modular building. Mr. Ridgewatstd that as they looked at the
opportunity to put up a more permanent, or at leadt quite as temporary service
location, they found a site due west of the ChiltreCCenter’s existing gymnasium that
would be completely out of public view and in airevthat is covered with concrete and
has an appropriate drainage ditch. Mr. Ridgewayest that he has talked with North
Mississippi Pediatric Clinic, who is the land ownermediately to the west, and they
have no problem with NMMC placing the structurehe proposed site. Mr. Ridgeway
stated that NMMC is viewing the modular buildingdatie service as a test case. He



stated that if over a period of a couple of yedrs proposed clinic proves to be
successful, then a more permanent solution wipglosued.

Mr. Gratz asked the committee if they had any qaestfor Mr. Ridgeway.

Mrs. Brown asked where the modular building wowdpltaced in relation to the existing
drainage ditch and culvert located on the sitee Shted that according to the site plan, it
appears that the building will sit on top of theidage ditch, which appears to run in
three different directions. Mr. Ridgeway statedtttihe length of the modular building is
40 feet. He stated that the distance from theectibo the fence is about 55 to 60 feet.
Mr. Ridgeway stated that they propose to placebthikeling about 15 to 20 feet from the
culvert. Mr. Ridgeway stated that the building Iviaé shifted to the west which will
mean it will sit halfway on the concrete and haljvem the lawn. Mr. Ridgeway stated
that it will be located away from the existing gyasium and away from the culvert. Mr.
Falkner stated that the City Engineer, John Cranteycurred that there will not be a
problem with the drainage.

Mr. Robison asked Mr. Falkner if Chapter 12 of thgoelo Development Code allows
this type of structure. Mr. Falkner stated yes.r. RRobison asked Mr. Falkner to
elaborate. Mr. Falkner stated that Section 12d.2he Tupelo Development Code
allows factory fabricated transportable buildings lie used as expansion space for
existing churches, health care facilities, goveminudfices, etc.

Mr. Robison asked Mr. Ridgeway the time frame fog project. Mr. Ridgeway stated
that NMMC should know within the next two to thrgears if they would like to pursue a
permanent clinic on the Child Care site.

Mr. Gratz asked the current location of the prodos®dular building. Mr. Ridgeway

stated that it is currently on the campus of thenW¥o’s Hospital. Mr. Gratz asked if it is

near the service entrance. Mr. Ridgeway statedthre ,modular building is currently

adjacent to another modular building in an alcaxeated at the front of the Women'’s
Hospital, but they will both be removed within thext couple of months. Mr. Gratz

asked if the building will be less visible in theoposed location. Mr. Ridgeway stated
yes.

Mrs. Brown addressed the existing temporary staikg in use for the proposed modular
building. She pointed out that the stairs did tok very attractive or very safe,

especially when dealing with small children. Shketesd that an adult may be able to
handle the open stairwells, but they do not looky\&urdy. Mrs. Brown asked Mr.

Ridgeway if NMMC plans to move the stairs alonghwnihe structure or if they are

planning to do something a little more child frignd Mr. Ridgeway stated that new
stairs will be built to make a much more permareamd useful staircase. Mrs. Brown
stated that if she were going to vote for the apgplrof the building, she would like to see
the replacement of the existing stairs as a camditi



Mr. Robison asked if there would be any physicahrnaxtion between the modular
building and the Child Care Center, such as a candfr. Ridgeway stated there is none
planned at this time.

Mr. Wilson asked the life expectancy of a modulaiidhng. Mr. Ridgeway stated that
NMMC has owned the unit for about ten years. Mddeway stated that is was used as
the Eupora Emergency Department for about threesyaad has been in its current
location for about three years. Mr. Ridgeway statat the modular building is probably
good for about one more move before becoming dgsitumal. Mr. Wilson stated that
with the building being in a non-visible locatiomdait nearing the end of its life
expectancy, he did not see a need in placing alimiieon an approval of the conditional
use. Mr. Wilson stated that the difference betwbbn Enis’ proposed building and
NMMC’s modular building is that Mr. Enis had plamhéo make his building a
permanent structure, whereas the modular buildiaglavonly be a temporary clinic for
the Child Care Center.

Mr. Gratz asked if there was anyone present toksg#her in favor or against the
application. As there were none, he closed thdipuriput portion of the meeting and
opened the discussion to the committee.

Mrs. Brown stated that she did not really haveablgm with the application. She stated
that she thought the request is a good servicarfamployer to offer its employees and
their children, a needed health issue, thus meetnggof the major criteria for granting

something like this. Mrs. Brown further stated shight like to see, as a member of the
Planning Committee, conditions placed on an appram@e being an upgrade of the

existing stairs, and the other being a time lingt with a more permanent solution
planned instead of just having the temporary bagdecause is very unattractive.

Mr. Robison asked what would happen if a time limére set and if the unit were not
moved or done away with at the end of the giveretirmme. He asked if the applicant
would re-apply for the unit to be used for a longeriod of time. Mr. Falkner stated yes,
Planning Committee approval would be required. Robison asked if it would be

appropriate to consider a time frame. Mr. Falknatesl yes.

Mr. Gratz asked if the Department of DevelopmentviSes would calendar and check
on the status of the building in two years. MrkhRar stated yes.

Mr. Wilson stated that he did not have a problerthva time frame. He stated that
according to Mr. Ridgeway, NMMC would know in apgimately two years if the
project could move forward and become permanerd.stidted that he felt a four or five
year limit would be more appropriate. He statedlt tih the committee approved the
request for only two years, then all they are dasmeserving the right at some point in
the future to see if anything has changed that tmgdke it no longer appropriate. He
stated that a little longer time limit seems readx@. Mr. Robison agreed.



Mrs. Brown stated that if the building is almositatend, a two year limit is enough that
the Planning Committee could re-visit the applwatibased on if the building passed city
inspections. She stated that if the building i &tnctional in two years time, the
Planning Committee could grant another conditiars& and place a further time limit on
the building. She then stated that she is noawoirf in making the application a long
term issue without reviewing it again.

Mr. Gratz asked the committee if they were readyédke a motion.
Mr. Wilson stated that limiting the building to grtlwo years is too restrictive.

Mrs. Brown asked what if the committee is willing tompromise because the issue
requires a two-thirds majority vote.

Mr. Gratz stated that the since the request is pmtanditional use, it only requires a
simple majority vote. He stated that the issupaginent and asked Mr. Ridgeway to
address the committee and state the longevity eflita expectancy of the modular
building.

Mr. Ridgeway stated that certainly within three iied&MMC would know the future of
on-site therapy services for the Child Care Centde. stated that he does not expect to
have to come back to the Planning Committee fothang beyond three years use of the
modular building. He stated that the building wbille moved onto the Child Care
Center campus within the month.

Mrs. Brown stated that she could compromise andeaty a three year time limit for the
proposed conditional use.

Mr. Wilson made a motion to approve the requedh wie condition that it be for a three
year duration before coming back to the Planningh@dtee for approval, if requested,
and also that the entrance steps be upgraded feimpresent condition in a manner that
is agreeable to the Department of Development &esvi Mrs. Brown seconded the
motion, which passed unanimously, with Mrs. Murghadstaining from the vote.

3. MJSUB09-02: GW _Properties requests a_six-lot _subdision on
approximately 12.32 acres on the southwest cornef €oley Road and
McCullough Boulevard in _a C-2, General Commercial _Dning
District.

Mr. Falkner stated that the property was rezone&2Dbb from C-3, Heavy Commercial to
C-2, General Commercial at Mr. Clyde Whitaker'suest and by Planning Committee
and City Council approval. Mr. Falkner stated thatthat time, Mr. Whitaker had a
conceptual layout of what the possibilities woulel for subdividing it for use. Mr.
Falkner stated that in the interim, since that fimeouple of lots that have street frontage
on McCullough Boulevard were subdivided out as mione-lot subdivisions, but the
interior has not been presented for major sub@risipproval pending some marketing



and finalization of exactly what would be the besly to develop the property and get an
anchor in there. Mr. Falkner stated that the priyp@vners had chosen to go ahead and
build the streets in the subdivision in order talfate the marketing of the property. He
stated that the street plans had been submittéeetoity for review with the idea that at
some point they would like to have it dedicated gmiblic street. Mr. Falkner stated that
the street plans have been through all necesspartieental review and has passed all
engineering inspections and already qualifies fedichtion as a public street. Mr.
Falkner stated that with a commercial subdivisemetimes flexibility is necessary with
lots. Mr. Falkner used the property around theltaBarnes Crossing as an example for
property line flexibility. He stated that some thfe southern lots of the proposed
subdivision may need some lot line flexibility &etapplicant’s request, but the rest of
the subdivision’s lot lines are permanent. MrkiRal stated that the lots of the proposed
subdivision meet the minimum lot standards andsthmlivision package is complete.

Mr. Clyde Whitaker, of GW Developers, stated that did not want to divide the
property into lots until he had a better idea ofvhitbe property would develop. He stated
that approximately 15 years earlier he had decmlepocery store was needed in the
western part of the city. Mr. Whitaker stated tlegt needs to have the property
subdivided so that he can begin the financing &tdio building permits. He stated that
once a proposed grocery store is constructed, héavable to tell how he would like to
develop the remaining portion of the site. Heestabhat the proposed grocery store will
contain approximately four and a half acres and lveila 26,000 square foot grocery. He
stated that it will not be as large as a super @yostore, but will be large enough to
accommodate the community. Mr. Whitaker statetl lheabelieves a grocery store in the
western part of town will be a very viable busineste then stated that the name of the
street going through the subdivision has been ahrigom McCullough Center to
Dimple Gates Drive.

Mrs. Murphree asked Mr. Whitaker if he had a grgcstore tenant for the site. Mr.
Whitaker stated yes, unless he runs into a majoblem, he has someone who would
like to have a grocery store up and running by abarch of 2010. Mr. Whitaker stated
that the plans have already been drawn and sulohfiitebids. Mrs. Murphree asked Mr.
Whitaker if he could reference the size of the psmul grocery store to an existing
grocery store in Tupelo. Mr. Whitaker stated tHatoger grocery store has
approximately 60,000 square feet, while Todd’s grgcstore has about 16,000. He
stated that Kroger has a lot of non-grocery sttems that the proposed grocery store
will not have, yet it will be a full service groger

Mr. Wilson asked Mr. Falkner if the subdivision planeets all city requirements. Mr.
Falkner stated yes. Mr. Wilson asked Mr. Falknethdre were any concerns with the
proposed subdivision. Mr. Falkner stated that wiftenrezoning was approved in 2005,
the visibility from the street coming into Coley &bwas questioned, but the engineers
are now satisfied that there is adequate sighamlst

Mr. Gratz asked the committee if they had more tores for Mr. Whitaker.

10



Mrs. Murphree asked Mr. Whitaker if the retail €®rand restaurant drawn on the
submitted plan are existing buildings. Mr. Whitake&ted no. Mr. Whitaker stated that
there are several tenants interested in the siteh ss a doctor’'s office, and others
interested in a strip center. Mr. Whitaker stateat the buildings drawn on the plans are
proposed buildings and the only existing buildilmgs a bank and another restaurant. Mr
Whitaker stated that proposed buildings will beiEimto the existing buildings on the
site.

Mr. Robison stated that the application appeatseto keeping with the Comprehensive
Plan.

Mr. Falkner stated that this area was identifiedm@s.ctivity center in the Comprehensive
Plan. Mr. Falkner stated that the addition of acgry store in the area would create the
synergy that would make the activity center work.

Mr. Gratz asked if there was anyone present tokspéher in favor of or against the
application. No one was present and the publiatigortion of the meeting was closed
and the floor was opened to committee discussion.

Mr. Robison stated that he is encouraged by thpgs®d development, especially with it
being in keeping with the Comprehensive Plan.

Mrs. Murphree stated that the Committee shouldtkeir standards for more good
developers that will see a project through with tikantended.

Mr. Wilson made a motion to approve the subdivisioMrs. Murphree seconded the
motion, which passed unanimously.

Mr. Gratz stated that Mr. Whitaker had submitteceey good application and had a very
good presentation.

4, VAR09-06: Tupelo Church of God requests a variancéo allow the
erection of pole lights that are 50 — 55 feet in _Inght rather than the
allowed 25 feet at a softball field located behindupelo Church of
God at 1813 Briar Ridge Road in an R-1M, Medium LotResidential
Zoning District.

Mr. Falkner stated that the regulation in quest®part of the site plan requirements for
projects that are submitted for review. He statieat commercial projects, church
projects or non-profit projects are subject to @en® process that must meet several
criteria of the Tupelo Development Code, but thgomiy of them are addressed in
Chapter 13. Mr. Falkner stated that exterior liggntis under a requirement that is
intended to keep the city from having too much egdeht spilling out onto properties
other than those within a development or those gn@s the lights are intended to
illuminate. Mr. Falkner stated that there is a {paot standard in Chapter 13 for lights;
one is on the height of the pole and the othenighe type of lighting and the actual light

11



effects. Mr. Falkner stated that the height stashdianits the poles to 25 feet in height
and is intended to be a focused-type light thatpkekght to one area rather than
broadcasting light up and out. Mr. Falkner stated the standard is measured in terms
of foot candles of illumination at the propertydin He stated that to determine that, the
applicant was asked to submit a study that is dyritne supplier of the light fixtures that
actually maps the intensity of light that could égected from the type of light fixture
used and the height requested. Mr. Falkner stitatdthe committee has a display of
both the numerical results of the study and a @ibterial map which shows the higher
levels of illumination than what the code allowslir. Falkner stated that the idea is to
keep bright lights from shining into residencesindgitimes of rest, etc., and the light
should be confined to the property it is intended fHe stated that between the height of
the lights and the brightness that would be neéaled ball field, it appears to have some
spillover effects. Mr. Falkner stated that the leggpion is unusual because the city does
not have many similar cases, even though theresareral City of Tupelo ball fields,
most are not surrounded by residential propertyableast two sides like the proposed
location. Mr. Falkner stated that there is alsbfi@rence of elevation. He stated that the
church on Briar Ridge is at a higher elevation ttienball fields.

Rev. Jack Ezell, Pastor of Tupelo Church of Goatest that he has been the pastor of the
church for the past 45 years. He stated that binech bought the property a long time
ago and when the sanctuary was built there wasmabmethat wanted to have a softball
team. Rev. Ezell stated that since they have edetite softball field, people other than
church members are requesting use of it, but theyhandicapped because there are no
lights. He stated that there are also church mesnloéd and young alike, are interested
in forming church ball teams. Rev. Ezell stateat they are not there to do damage, but
to help the neighborhood. He stated that theretwoe people that have been living
behind the church for many years and they evidendlgeived letters from the
Department of Development Services. Rev. Ezetedt#hat the resident’s names were
Kelly and they had both called him and asked hirfetahe committee know they are in
favor of the ball fields and expressed an interestatching softball games held there.
Rev. Ezell stated that the church wanted to hagestitball fields lit for those who want
to play but do not have a place to play, and atsericourage the young people in the
church and surrounding neighborhood to play. RezellEstated that the ball field is
complete with fencing, and only needs lights. Ikbesl that there would be no all-night
activities on the field and the church only want®ibe a place for the neighborhood and
the church. Rev. Ezell stated that at the latebtgbanes would probably be over no later
than 10:30 p.m.

Mr. Gratz asked the Committee if they had any qaestfor Rev. Ezell.

Mr. Wilson asked Rev. Ezell if the people who hatled him and said they could not be
at the meeting were elderly or handicap in some W@y would prohibit them from

attending the meeting. Rev. Ezell stated that idendt know, but had received calls
from both residents on Thursday evening in favothefapplication. Mr. Wilson stated
that if either of the residents were to move ot ge property later on, prospective
buyers looking at the houses during the day woaldehno idea there are softball field

12



lights that might be considered a problem, thuatang an undesirable effect and causing
blight in the neighborhood. Mr. Wilson asked howny residences are adjacent to the
church property. Rev. Ezell stated that the twdlyKeesidences are located adjacent to
the ball field and one other resident.

Mrs. Brown asked Rev. Ezell how many years the haldl has been located on the
property. Rev. Ezell stated the field has beeaxistence for at least ten years, maybe
longer.

Mrs. Murphree asked Rev. Ezell how many softbathga are played on the field during
the course of a season. Rev. Ezell stated thdicheot know because the church has not
really used it, yet. He stated there have beenoxppately 10 — 12 games played on the
field in the past few years. Mrs. Murphree asketh& church is part of a league where
other churches visit the ball field for games. REzell stated that yes, the church plans
to have a league and there will probably be timésrwother church teams come in a
play. He stated that they would probably want ésthweekend tournaments, but there
would be a time limit for night games. Mrs. Murpblrasked Rev. Ezell how he planned
to police the field to prohibit kids from loiteringhen no games are being played or
when there are no church activities. Rev. Ezellest that they have dealt mainly with
other churches, but occasionally a children’s tedim will request the field for practice.
He further stated that there would always be somdoym the church at any softball
games, whether it be church league or otherwises. Murphree asked Rev. Ezell how
he planned to monitor activities if people simpicdled to show up and use the fields
without asking. Rev. Ezell stated that there wdwddocked gates around the fields, but
not around the parking lot.

Mr. Gratz asked if there were any other questioosfthe committee.

Mrs. Brown asked Rev. Ezell the number of daysligigs might be on and the time of
year they might be on. Rev. Ezell stated that ngashes would be played in the late
evenings and early dark.

Mr. Wilson asked Rev. Ezell how he plans to cortnel lights. Rev. Ezell stated that the
church would have a member to control the lights tde lights will be locked.

Mr. Gratz asked if there was anyone present to kspeafavor of or against the
application.

Mr. Vance Kimball, 30051-A Edwards Road, Nettletdississippi, and member of
Tupelo Church of God, stated that the reason tbpgsed lights needed such height was
to avoid blinding the players. He stated that &ipplication is about more than just
softball. Mr. Kimball stated that for the past seal years he has been a part of a prison
ministry where church members go and play againsbpers. He stated at the end of
every game, church members meet the prisonerg ahtlund where the word of God is
shared and lives are changed. Mr. Kimball staked it is the church’s wish that God
will bless the softball ministry and carry it fueththan just softball. He further stated

13



that the softball league would be a way to keepytheh off of the streets. Mr. Kimball
stated that softball is a useful tool to get peapte church and to give opportunity to
witness. He stated that the church hopes to hd&adl & eague this year, if the lights are
approved. Mr. Kimball further stated that no toumemt games would be held on
Sundays, and most games would be held on Fridagtsjigsaturdays, and Saturday
nights. Mr. Kimball stated that the church hagadty invested over $25,000 in the field,
but is unable to use it successfully because tuer@o lights.

Mr. Gratz asked the Committee if they had any qaestfor Mr. Kimball.

Mrs. Murphree asked if the fields would be used tigaduring the week or on weekends
during the fall season. Mr. Kimball stated thatidg the summer months, the church
league practices on Tuesday evenings from 6:0030 @.m. He stated that the lights
will need the light mostly on Friday and Saturdaghts. Mrs. Murphree asked about
other church activities where the lights may bedeee such as a fall festival. Mr.
Kimball stated that those types of activities asaally held during daylight hours.

Mr. Gratz asked Mr. Kimball to speak briefly abdbée security of the lights as far as
people being able to turn them on. Mr. Kimbaltetiathat the lever to turn the lights on
and off would be located in a box on a pole andld/oemain locked, as would the gates.

Mr. Gratz asked if there were any more questiond/io Kimball.

Mrs. Brown stated that she was not sure she umaetdhe church’s intention for the
field. She stated that she thought Rev. Ezell $tated that the field could be used by
other people, such as Park & Rec teams, possiliignwhey could not get fields within
the City of Tupelo Parks & Rec System. Mr. Kimbstihited that he did not think that
would be a possibility. Mrs. Brown asked Mr. Kintlb& he thought the fields would
have nightly use during the season. Mr. Kimballestahat the church has no intention of
making the softball field public. Mrs. Brown askktl. Kimball if church members who
have young teams would be allowed to use the falgractice. Mr. Kimball stated yes,
church members could come and use the field. Birswn then stated that there is a
possibility that the field might get nightly use.rMimball stated no, because church
members would not abuse the field and it would lee. REzell's decision as to who
would be given keys to the lights and the fields.

Mr. Robison asked if the church intended to reetlhihll field out to the general public.
Rev. Ezell stated no, as did Mr. Kimball.

Mr. Wilson asked Mr. Kimball what type of investnteis required for the proposed
lights. Mr. Kimball stated approximately $20,000.0

Mr. Gratz asked if there were any more questiondfio Kimball. He then asked if there

was anyone present to speak either for or agdiesapplication. Seeing none, he closed
the public input portion of the meeting and opeméd the committee for discussion.

14



Mr. Gratz asked Mr. Falkner how the Department e¥@opment Services could ensure
that the lights, if approved, would be focused ovegy limited area and not exceed the
maximum foot candles as prescribed. Mr. Falknatest that the staff would make sure
the lights met Planning Committee requirementsughocommercial site plan inspection
process. He stated that commercial plans wouleéWewed and approved first, then site
visits would require approval.

Mr. Wilson asked how many poles are required inpifugoosed plan. Mrs. Brown stated
there are six poles on the submitted application.

Mrs. Brown stated that she realized the zoningtlierarea is R-1M and a church is a
permitted use, but then asked Mr. Falkner to citern® in the Development Code a
baseball field is a permitted use in an R-1M zondigfrict. Mr. Falkner stated that
normally, on a church property, the staff lookshattgs such as ball fields as an extension
of the church program. He stated that the bdlll i not, in principle, any different from
a church having a gymnasium with basketball go&ls. Falkner stated that he did not
think about looking at the field as if it were gagate issue from the church, but at that
time consulted the Development Code to see wha&tgoay recreation falls into. Mrs.
Brown stated that she only asked the question Isecthe application is a precedent
setting issue. Mr. Falkner stated that recreatifenalities are a permitted use, but lights
create a question of hours of use, which has tmaie with the time than the impact of
the lights. Mrs. Brown then stated that by lookmigthe aerial view, there is a lot of
undeveloped land that is directly next to the chuend field. She asked if the
Department of Development Services has any thoalgbtit how the lights would affect
the future development of the vacant land and tlopgaty values of the surrounding
area. Mr. Falkner stated that normally, if consig property for residential use, a
public park contributes value to the property. dtkted that he did not know if the same
affect could be attributed in this case since mas$ a public park, but strictly a private
ball field. Mr. Falkner stated that there is ndbtthat would tend to suggest that the ball
field would have a positive effect.

Mr. Gratz asked Mr. Falkner if the property owndwsated behind the outfield had
received notification of the hearing. Mr. Falkretated that notices were sent, but the
staff did not receive any calls from adjacent propewners.

Mr. Wilson stated that if the adjacent property eveental property, the property owner
would have received the notice and not the tenant.

Mr. Gratz asked the committee if there was anyhfrtliscussion.

Mr. Robison asked Mr. Falkner if the applicant cbustall lights up to 25 feet in height.
Mr. Falkner stated yes. Mr. Robison asked if the@Mhssue is to allow the applicant to
install lights of 50 — 55 feet in height. Mr. Fa#c stated yes, except that the same
fixture at 55 feet will allow more light off the pperty than it would at 25 feet. Mr.
Robison asked if the reason for asking for theaven@ is to allow proper lighting to play
softball. Mr. Falkner stated yes.

15



Mr. Gratz stated that he is concerned with the ipnaiy of the field to Briar Ridge Road,
and by his calculations it is about 300 — 400 fe#r. Gratz asked Mr. Falkner his
estimation of a light pole with 12 lights shiningto the traffic, or would the lights even
reach the street since the field is in a depressMn Falkner stated that yes, the field is
in a depression and most of the light is facingapposite direction of Briar Ridge Road.

Mrs. Murphree asked Mr. Falkner how tall the exigtiights are at the ball fields located
on Joyner Avenue. Mr. Falkner stated that he didtkmow and that the Joyner lights
have been in place for some time and to his knoydedvere not submitted to the
Department of Development Services for review. .Misirphree stated that they are
located close to the street.

Mr. Gratz stated that the ball field closest tonkryAvenue is not currently being use and
that most games are now played at the newly deedlansolidated ball fields at
Ballard Park.

Mr. Robison stated that Rev. Ezell had commented the neighbors had had no
disagreement with the plans for the church to gl@vighting for the ball field. Mr.
Robison asked what recourse the adjacent neighwordd have if the lights are
bothersome once approved. Mr. Falkner stateddlly/ iiid not know if there could be a
recourse once the lights are approved and in place.

Mrs. Murphree stated that a condition cannot begulaon a variance. Mr. Falkner
agreed and stated that it is not specifically ptedifor in the Development Code as with
a conditional use, but it might be possible intaaion like this where the issue is not
just a physical facility, but also the hours of.udér. Falkner stated that he did not know
of anything in the code that would prohibit a cdiath on a variance.

Mrs. Murphree asked for legal advice from the ©ityfupelo’s legal representative.

Mr. Brannon Kabhlstorf, City Attorney, stated tha& Wwas not sure if a condition could be
placed on a variance, but would look into it artdhe committee know.

Mrs. Brown stated that she was having trouble figdivhere the application meets the
standards of review. She then asked if any mewibide committee could tell her where
they might be able to grant the request under titke @nd variance request. She stated
that the committee could not grant the requestijastiuse they would like to or because
they think it would be nice for the church. Shatetl that the committee has to have a
good sound reason for granting the variance basetthe ordinance and stated that she
could find none. Mrs. Brown stated that she cdind reason to for the public and the
other property owners who may not at this time hayaoblem with the lights, but for
future adjacent property owners who may or maymothase property because of the
lights, thus making the property value decrease csluld find reason to deny the request
based on what is in the code.

16



Mrs. Murphree stated that Mr. Falkner stated tretould consider the request as an
extension of the church, much like a gymnasium Baily Life Center.

Mrs. Brown stated that a variance requires somgtpeculiar about the property and the
committee cannot just grant the variance for theveaience of the applicants and must
find that it meets one of the four factors in thevBlopment Code and grant it based on
that. She further stated that she could not fileéne the variance request meets one of
the four factors, but was willing to listen to thest of the committee to tell her where it
does that.

Mrs. Murphree asked Mr. Falkner if he could detemmihat the request met one of the
four factors. Mr. Falkner stated no.

Mr. Gratz asked Mr. Falkner if there are any otttairches in town that have lighted ball
fields. Mr. Falkner stated there were none thatshaware of. Mr. Gratz asked what
other churches do for softball fields. Mr. Falks¢ated that a number of them play on
city fields at Ballard Park or Veterans Park, agytimay play on fields outside the city
limits, such at Chesterville or Auburn.

Mr. Gratz stated that he sensed some uncertainon@rthe committee. He stated that
the committee has the right to approve, deny, adaot an additional public hearing. He
stated that in his opinion, the committee needeldetr from Mr. Kahlistorf to determine

if they could place conditions on the variance.

Mr. Kahlstorf stated that in Section 6.1.4, Actibg the Planning Committee, Sub-
Section 5, the code does state that the “in grgrainy variance, the Planning Committee
may attach such conditions to the approval as é@ndenecessary and appropriate to
satisfy the standards as set forth in Section &d.Eeduce or minimize any injurious
affect of such variance upon other property anghi®rhood and to ensure compliance
with other terms of this ordinance.” Mr. Kahlstathited that the Planning Committee
may attach any conditions.

Mr. Wilson stated that he would feel more comfoldabthe committee had letters from
the surrounding property owners stating that thayehno problem with the proposed
lights.

Mrs. Murphree asked Mr. Wilson if he were suggestabling the application.

Mr. Wilson stated yes. He stated that he is tryinggive the church an opportunity
because he thinks there is something in the apjplicghat could be an asset to that area
of the community and the neighborhood. He stateatl there could be some people that
would like to move to the area because of the atiffield and it could become a good,
wholesome place to go. Mr. Wilson then stated gmaen the right circumstances, the
softball field could really be an asset for theaare

17



Mrs. Murphree stated that she thought tabling fh@ieation was the fairest thing to do
since most of the committee seemed to have concgatsadmired the church for
wanting to have an outreach program.

Mr. Gratz stated that Mr. Robison made a very gpouit by stating that the church is
within their right to erect 25-foot lights and tbemmittee should recognize that fact. He
stated that Mr. Wilson also brought up a very gpoat by stating that the committee
should consider property owners that are not ptefeerthe meeting, even though they
may have received notice and forgone their righattend the meeting, they may not
realize the impact of a 50-foot lights.

Mrs. Brown stated that it the committee’s inteliestot only in making sure the property
owners nearby are looked after, but that the wisdleis looked after. She stated that
once the committee grants the variance, then the tme lights come before the
committee from another neighborhood, the code statat “granting the proposed
variance will not confer on the applicant any speprivilege that this ordinance denies
to other land structures or buildings located m shme zoning district.” She stated that
right now, the committee can honestly say that dbftball field does not confer any
special privilege, but once the variance is grantieel committee opens the whole city up
for lights at this height, not just the church, bt everybody else that might want taller
light structures in the city.

Mr. Wilson stated that he thought the committee &ladhys interpreted the code to mean
“given the same circumstances.” He then statetdthi@acommittee would need to make
sure that those things were cited in a motion.

Mrs. Brown stated that she was just quoting thedsaf the code, not the way they are
interpreted by individuals of the committee.

Mr. Wilson made a motion to table the variance ssfjuntil the September meeting in
order to give the applicant time to address theeisdrought up by the committee.

Mr. Gratz stated that it is probably appropriatdb&overy specific in the motion so that
the applicant knows exactly what the committeesidrag of them.

Mr. Wilson stated that there are a lot of differeohcerns.

Mrs. Murphree stated that the committee normallguies a notarized letter from

property owners. She then suggested that adjgepierty owners submit notarized

letters to the committee stating. She also stdtadthat the Department of Development
Services should do a little due diligence and deitez the height of the lights at Joyner,
even thought they are not being used, but ligresaing used on the tennis courts.

Mrs. Brown stated that she did not think the corteeitcould compare what is on city
property to what is on private property.

18



Mrs. Murphree stated that it would give the comedta frame of reference.

Mrs. Brown agreed that it would give a frame oferehce about how tall the lights
would be, but anything that has tall lights andoighe benefit of all the citizens of the
town and tax payer dollars is different from whhe tcommittee might allow for a
variance on private property in a residential neathood.

Mr. Gratz stated that he thought Mrs. Muprhree yuas talking about for comparison
sake so the committee could get an idea of thenheigolved.

Mrs. Brown stated that she had stopped and talkdd employees of Tupelo Water &
Light who were working near the ball field and hasked them how tall the lights are
that regular street lights are on and was told #re\40 feet tall.

Mr. Gratz asked what other specifics need to bearptiite motion.
Mrs. Wilson then stated that he simply wanted hisiom to be to table the application.

Mrs. Brown stated that Mr. Wilson should make a iowtto have a second public
hearing rather than just tabling the motion.

Mr. Robison seconded the motion, which passed amausly.

5. TA09-03: Text Amendments for Chapters 3, 5, and 14f the Tupelo
Development Code which provide for Planning Commite
appointments based on new Council structure, and jwide for the use
of development agreements on planned unit _developmis, major
subdivisions, and major site plans.

Mr. Falkner stated that the changes to Chaptee 3aanly simple. He stated that because
the City Council's representation has changed byrtcorder, the language of the
Development Code that states there must be Plai@omgmittee members that represent
each council ward and each at large member is mgelovalid. Mr. Falkner started that
language needs to be created that gives the P@i@ommittee representation a basis
that accurately reflects the City Council, eithereanember for each ward, forming a
seven member committee, or possibly maintainingnea member committee with two
members appointed by the Mayor, or there coulddmeesother structure. Mr. Falkner
stated that either way, the reference to the gelaouncil positions should be eliminated
from the code.

Mrs. Murphree stated that she thought the comméterild be kept as a nine-member
committee. She stated that sometimes it is hargetoa quorum and with only seven
members, it would be harder. She then statedamate-member committee is the best
way to go. She agreed that the committee shoulcejpeesentative of the seven wards
with two from any other ward.

19



Mr. Wilson stated that he agreed with Mrs. Murphr&ating that the code should state
the committee should consist of at least one merfdreeach ward and have two extra
positions to keep the committee at nine members.. Wilson stated that given the
history of the committee and as he has heard ftafirmembers, it can be difficult to get
a quorum with as little as seven members. Mr. dVilsuggest that the code be changed
to state “the Planning Committee shall consistiokmrmembers, at least one from each
geographical ward, appointed by the Mayor” and thatld delete the reference to “at
large” and give some leeway.

Mr. Gratz suggested the after “appointed by the dfgythe code should read “at the
time of appointment” because Planning Committee be¥s sometimes move their
residence from ward to ward and should not be jpesdhfor it.

Mrs. Muprhree stated that she would like for thenoattee to consider adding another
caveat to the code that would allow Planning Cort@mitmembers to only serve two
terms before rotating off. She stated that thisildl@ive more citizens an opportunity to
serve as a volunteer for their city.

Mr. Gratz stated that, from his board experiences.Murphree’s suggestion makes
sense, especially since the Planning Committeevidumteer group. He stated that if the
terms are limited, it helps get the community imeal. Mr. Gratz asked Mrs. Murphree
her suggestion was to limit committee members to twonsecutive terms. Mrs.

Murphree stated yes. Mr. Gratz then asked if ambt@e member could serve two
terms, go off the committee for a term, then bepemted again. Mrs. Murphree stated
yes. Mr. Gratz suggest that the committee defieentord “term” since he had been told
a “term” is three or four years.

Mrs. Brown asked Mr. Gratz if the committee coudhhfrom legal counsel.

Mr. Brannon Kabhlstorf, City Attorney, stated thaetDevelopment Code actually states
that the appointment of Planning Committee memsbleadl be for four years.

Mrs. Muprhree asked Mr. Kahlstorf what the MisgpsiAnnotated Code states about
Planning Committee terms, and further stated thattsought the Annotated Code stated
a three year term for Planning Committee members.

Mr. Gratz referenced Section 21.8.23 of the MiggmEsAnnotated Code. Mr. Gratz
stated that everybody on the committee may be apgmbifor four years by the Mayor,
but right now the terms are staggered and the neyoMnow has five spots to fill. He
stated that there is one position to be filled irdrately and four others will expire in
October.

Mr. Wilson stated that the Planning Committee halenthe recommendation of a four
year term because each time when the council cdarigere was the potential of the
Planning Committee consisting of all new membees ttad no prior knowledge of city
planning.

20



Mrs. Brown stated that when the policy was madeaegntly the code was not amended
to reflect it, because the code has a statemenit afften terms are to start and how, if
someone leaves before their term has expired,dbigign is to be filled for the remainder
of the term.

Mr. Wilson stated that he thought the Planning Cathei had usually left the decision
up to the City’s Administration.

Mr. Kahlstorf stated that that is probably where throblem arose in having four
members terms expire at the same time. He stasedite city has had this problem with
other boards and commissions in the city. He dt#tat the only way to alleviate the
problem is to either allow committee members toeerlonger period than their term, or
shorten their term.

Mr. Wilson stated that the matter should be adexkssnd determined by the City
Council. Mr. Kahlstorf agreed.

Mrs. Brown stated that the code definitely statesrhonth of the year that a committee
member is to start the term and the current coramit so far off of that. She stated that
the committee needs to make the policy and the wgrdf the code fit together. She

stated that the proposed amendment does not ge fawienough and the committee is
just beginning to see what needs to be done tsdlstion. She stated the committee
needed to work on the amendment a little more eraten just accepting it the way it

has been proposed on the current agenda.

Mr. Kahlstorf stated that the code states cleaytwshould have been done, but it has
not been the practice over the past several yedhscommittee members leaving, or

resigning, or having to be replaced. Mr. Kahlssidted that if a member is appointed to
finish out the remainder of another members tehantthe said term is over when the
original term ends, not four years from when thes meember is appointed. He stated
that the terms are supposed to be on a calendaagddhey are to be staggered.

Mr. Gratz stated that one solution could be thateothe committee agrees on a text
amendment, a recommendation should be made to #gydrvand the City Council to
adjust the current terms of the current board mesntie reflect a staggered committee
membership that would more accurately follow ther peoposed code.

Mr. Wilson stated that the reason the staggeredstevere put in the code was to make
sure that the Planning Committee remained a noitgadlbody and served its purpose as
a volunteer committee and did not change politycallery four years. Mr. Wilson stated
that the Planning Committee is entrusted with ecigheesponsibility to interpret the
Development Code as it is written and make sure ittdoes not become too technical
and forget that people are involved and make skheeprocess is not political at the
Planning Committee level.

21



Mr. Kahlstorf stated another reason for staggereuing is to make sure that the
committee does not have all fresh faces with nobtdy has been involved in the
Planning Committee. He stated that it could beotemqtial disaster to have nine new
members on the committee with no real understanaifgpw the committee works. Mr.
Kahlstorf stated that some research could be domketermine who replaced whom, but
was not sure to what extent he would have to gdear up the problem. He suggested
that it would be easier to come up with a propsaah as Mr. Gratz recommended and to
start fresh and new with staggered terms fromgabist forward.

Mr. Wilson asked if the committee would like to &lex sub-committee to work on the
proposed amendment regarding terms of servicedPldinning Committee.

Mr. Gratz stated a motion could be made.

Mrs. Murphree stated that she liked that the pregoamendment states Planning
Committee members must “reside in the corporatethanes of the City.”

Mrs. Brown stated that she would like for the cotbea to add to the amendment that the
Planning Committee members are voters of the @tyigpating in the voting process, or
gualified electors.

Mr. Gratz asked Mr. Falkner if the proposed amenunoeuld state “residence of the
City” rather tan “reside in the corporate boundard the City.” Mrs. Murphree stated
that she felt committee members should reside wite incorporated limits of the City.
Mr. Gratz asked the difference in terminology aicorporated limits” and “within the
City.”

Mr. Wilson stated that the committee should be foargbout what they do and if it
applies just to the Planning Committee, becauskeishthe extent of their authority. He
stated that the Mayor and the City Council shoudd ifvolved and it is simply a
recommendation from the Planning Committee to them.

Mrs. Murphree agreed.

Mrs. Brown stated that all amendments go to thg Cibuncil and the Mayor. Mrs.
Brown then stated that she would like Mr. Kahlstimrfmake sure that any amendment
drafted by the Planning Committee meets the remqares of the state code.

Mrs. Murphree suggested the committee make the dment a priority for their next
work session.

Mr. Falkner stated that there is a current vacamcthe committee.
Mr. Wilson stated that there is a provision in ttede that allows alternates. Mr.

Kahlstorf agreed. Mr. Wilson stated that therelddie someone who would volunteer as
an alternate, who has perhaps served in the past.

22



Mrs. Brown stated that in the past, when there Has®en problems with attendance,
having the alternate available was very helpful.

Mr. Wilson suggested handling the amendment ahéx work session and in the mean
time, discussing ideas and compiling before meedgan.

Mr. Gratz stated that whatever is done, almost@imittee members’ terms will need to
be adjusted to meet with the new staggered termutation. He stated that whoever
replaces Cindy Sanders, the committee will jusbm@mend adjusting the term at that
time. He then asked if there was a motion.

Mr. Falkner stated that the other proposed amenthmeeeded to be discussed
thoroughly before seeking a motion. He stated thatcommittee could discuss all the
amendments in depth at their next work session.. Ratkner stated that the other
proposed amendments relates to the idea of pugtinge enforceable agreements into the
code so that on major projects, there would beiienr well-defined set of expectations
for a developer so that when approval is grantlee,térms would be secured by some
financial instrument if the developer were to déifaun the project in some way. He
stated that in order to do that, the code musthanged in several pages, especially
Chapters 5 and 14.

Mr. Gratz asked Mr. Falkner if the amendments wergop-gap measure prior to the
committee obtaining a new code. Mr. Falkner statesl if the amendments could be
approved by the end of the year, at least the ctteencould have a good strong hold on
major projects until a new code is written and dddp

Mrs. Wilson made a motion to table the proposed tamendments. Mrs. Murphree
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

OTHER BUSINESS

Subcommittee Reports

Mrs. Brown read a resolution by the Comprehensiven PSub-Committee which
recommends the adoption of the 2025 Comprehendase 1B/ the City Council as is.
(See Attachment)

Mr. Wilson made a motion that the Planning Commaiteccept the resolution and
forward it to the City Council. The motion did noeéquire a second and passed
unanimously.

Mrs. Brown stated that it is required in the cotattthe Department of Development

Services provide an annual report and that the nitign Committee make a
recommendation whether the Comprehensive Plan nedusreadopted or amended and

23



then in September the City Council is requireddadopt or amend the Comprehensive
Plan each year, thus the need for the formal recamdation.

Mr. Gratz asked Mr. Falkner the status of the R¥Rte new Development Code.

Mr. Falkner stated that the RFP is now in the hamidthe Planning Committee. Mr.
Gratz asked if there were any comments.

Mr. Wilson asked if the RFP has been sent to thee@pment Code Subcommittee only.
Mrs. Murphree stated that she had not seen a dirzdd of the RFP. Mr. Falkner stated
that he had sent the draft of the RFP to the suautiee, but had trouble with Mrs.
Murphree’s email and would try sending it again.

Mr. Gratz stated that the RFP can be discussdwatext work session.

ADJOURN

Mr. Robison made a motion to adjourn the meetihy. Wilson seconded the motion
which passed unanimously.

24



